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Image of the old Town Hall shortly after construction



Paris, Ontario illustrated in Brant County 
Illustrated (atlas), 1875 published by Page and 
Smith. Detail of the location of the Town Hall 
and Market and St. James Anglican Church 
identified. 



The Town Hall was completed in 1854. 

The Town Hall second floor was used for several uses and 
served the community as a social and cultural hub. Many 
events were held in the Town Hall. 

The ground floor was home to the clerk and treasurer as 
well as partially a market, and in the mid 1850s, a grammar 
school was established in the building but by 1856, the 
council requested use of the room that was being used for 
the Grammar School. 

The basement housed the jail as well as partially a market 
accessed from grade

The first Town Council meeting was held on January 21st, 
1856. 

In 1874, the town purchased a bell for the Town Hall for 
$500 from Meneely Bell Foundry. They hired a bell ringer 
and rang the bell three times a day at 6:00 am, noon and 
6:00 pm.

In 1900, Council Members moved their offices to a new 
location.



Post Card images of the Old Town Hall from around the turn of the last century. Windows 
and doors remain unchanged in these images suggesting a date prior to the needle works 
changes c1917. The tower remains but has a balcony added for fire watch purposes. 
Note growth in trees along Church St.



Detail from Goads Fire Insurance Plan, 1913. The 
Town Hall is described as a Town Hall and Opera 
House since it was being used extensively for operas 
(vaudeville) at this time. The building is described as 
two and a half storeys with thirty feet to eaves, and 
fifty feet to ridge. The rear addition had not been 
added to the Town Hall in 1913



Image of the old town hall when occupied by Mary Maxim, note 
large billboard. Assumed to be in the 1950s, the spire had been 
reduced to just the lower roof after the removal of the spire, 
balcony, bell and belfry in c1953.

In 1900, Council moved their offices to 
a new location. 

1900-1917, the Town Hall was used as 
an entertainment venue for operas, 
plays and performances. 

In 1915, as part of the war effort, the 
basement was converted for 
manufacturing of artillery shells by 
G.W. McFarlane Engineering Co.

In 1882, James Wheeler established a 
needle factory in Paris, Ontario. In 
1917, they moved into the Town Hall 
building. The remnants of the painted 
signage on the front façade identifying 
the building as Wheeler Needle Works 
is still visible today. An addition was 
added to the building during the early 
tenure of Wheeler Needle Works. In 
1945, there was a fire in the 
basement.

In 1954 In 1954, Mary Maxim, a yarn 
and craft company purchased the 
building, and a second-floor addition 
was made to the rear addition.

Changes to the building over the years include:


• Addition to the east and south for the Wheeler 
Needle Works and removal of the ground floor 
east wall and alteration of many windows


• Lowering of the ground floor for industrial 
purposes, affecting the north stair to the 
Assembly room


• A second floor addition and east extension to 
the east addition for Mary Maxim


• removal of the bell tower and ultimately the 
entire tower roof.


• Removal of the east stair in the double stair 
access to the Assembly Room


 



Designation
The Identified Heritage Attributes for the property are:


Exterior 

• Conserve as much of the original exterior brick as possible

• The brick section of the bell tower

• Exterior elements over doors including the skylight and transept over the west facing door

• Conservation of the windows or reproduction with 12 over 12, or 9 over 12 panes where they exist

• Brick tracery over the doors and windows where it exists

• Angle buttresses with finials

• Stencil writing on the brick


Interior 

• Integrity of the upper hall including the exposed beams and cross bracings. If the beams are 
unsalvageable then replica beams must be used


• Wide plank wooden flooring where it exists

• Gothic style lancet entryways and windows where they exist

• Interior brick and wooden beams on the main floor

• Stone walls and features such as later above and at least 1 of 2 jail cells


Excluded from designation 

• The two later additions on the east side of the building

• The upper wooden section of the bell tower

This property has been designated under the Ontario Heritage Act Part IV, individual  designation.



Proposal

3D perspective view from the NE showing the historic building and new addition. DPAI-SZ 3D perspective view from the SE showing the historic building and new addition and new main entrance. 
DPAI-SZ

The Old Town Hall (OTH) is proposed to be the site of a new main branch library for Brant County. This requires a substantial addition to the building and 
consideration for how the Old Town Hall is interconnected to and part of the new project to minimize impacts to the identified Heritage Attributes. 

Care has been taken to preserve the whole of the Old Town Hall including its interior spaces and exterior walls which include most of the identified heritage 
attributes. Interconnections take advantage of wall openings that already exist from former alterations and require a minimum of new alterations.


The form and massing of the new addition takes its design clues from the heritage building in order to make a harmonious composition.




Site Plan

Additions removed

Connections to the 
historic Town Hall are 
located where former 
additions were located 
and existing walls 
were altered



Basement Plan

Preserve Jail as is for 
future enhancement 
and interpretation

Preserve remains 
below ground of 
former basement 
entrance

Reopen former 
basement entrance to 
make connection

Reinstall a stair to the 
basement



Ground Floor Plan

Existing doorways to 
former additions used 
for connections

Existing opening to 
former additions used 
for connections

Existing ground floor 
left largely as open 
space

New double stair 
returned to entrance

Existing window 
altered to doorway

Historic addition wall 
replicated



Existing window 
altered to doorway

New double stair 
returned to entrance

Bridge across open 
space reveals 
historic sidewall

Open Open

New Doors link to 
“backstage” 
multipurpose room stage

multipurpose room

Multipurpose Rm high open 
space reveals historic east wall

Second Floor Plan



Roof Plan



Illustration from the south west



Impacts of the new addition are primarily:


• The alteration of one additional window at the ground floor to make a doorway

• The alteration of one second floor window to make a doorway

• The alteration of the east assembly hall wall to make two doorways

• The impact of the new structure against the walls of the Old Town Hall where they meet including waterproofing 

both together.

• The change of form of the historic building. This began however in c.,1917 with the first east addition, subsequent 

additions and now this addition

• The change of context with the expansion of building on the site and some loss of view to the heritage building 

from the SE


Impacts of Proposed Project

Great care has been taken in the concept for the reuse of the building and the required additions for a library. 
Nonetheless there are some impacts to the heritage building from this prosed development. 



Building Condition

Reconstruction, where existing walls have deteriorated to the point they are loose and unstable. This is concentrated at the octagonal 
clasping buttresses and at the building parapets.

Repairs, where Building materials, brick or stone have deteriorated, some new bricks may be required; shifted, some lintels have dropped, 
moved; there are cracks in various locations, water damage, to interior finishes, wood trim etc.

Restoration,  where elements are missing or so severely deteriorated they require reconstruction. This includes; at windows where wood is so 
deteriorated it is beyond repair and sections have already been removed. Doors and openings where more recent alterations served conditions 
that no longer exist, such as two west doors to the same room or the south wall where openings connect to additions that will be removed. The 
main stair where half has been removed.

Maintenance, where work is required to preserve existing materials and arrangements, such as brick and stone repointing, flashing has failed, 
roofing is at the end of useful life and is the wrong type of roofing.

Preservation; where existing materials are in good functional condition and may continue in service for years to come.

The building requires considerable repair. There is much damage from water penetration through roof and walls and freezing and thawing to 
both interior and exterior as well as deferred maintenance and the effects of time. The following types of work are required:



Images that illustrate some of the existing conditions. All areas of the building require work from foundations to roof both inside and at the exterior.



Conservation
As a part of the project the historic building will be the subject of restoration and repair. Some of the changes from the Wheeler period are preserved to help 
illustrate the story of the building through time, including, the retention and repair of some of the 1917 windows and reconstruction of the north and south wall 
of the Wheeler addition that makes sense of the removal of the ground floor east wall of the old town hall.
















Questions


